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Dear Tara,   
 
Biodiversity Review of Soft Landscaping Proposals- 30 Camden Street, Camden 
 
Introduction 
In October 2017 Quinn London commissioned Middlemarch Environmental Ltd to undertake a review 
of the biodiversity benefits of the soft landscaping proposals (please refer to Appendix 1) at the 30 
Camden Street development site. The site is located at National Grid Reference TQ 2941 8353, 
measures approximately 0.15 ha, and is situated within a highly urbanised area. 
 
Quinn London have specifically asked for the review to assess whether the proposals are in 
accordance with relevant planning policies of the London Borough of Camden Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy and Development Policies (in relation to Condition 26 of the planning 
application). Since the development acquired planning permission, the Core Strategy and Camden 
Development Policies documents have been replaced by The Local Plan (adopted by Council on 3rd 
July 2017). Subsequently this review refers to the policies within the new The Local Plan as this is the 
current document forming the basis for planning decisions and future development in the borough. 
The policy of relevance to ecology is Policy A3: Biodiversity. The contribution of the landscape 
proposals to national or local biodiversity targets will also be considered.  
 
Ecological Baseline 
Prior to development the site was dominated by two buildings comprising St. Pancras Community 
Centre and a block of eighteen garages. Other habitats present included hardstanding access roads 
and pathways associated with the buildings, a strip of amenity grassland and scattered areas of 
introduced shrub. In addition, broadleaved tree specimens were located at the periphery of the site. 
 
The majority of the site was dominated by buildings and hardstanding which is considered to be of 
limited ecological value. Small areas of amenity grassland and introduced shrub were present 
however these are common, species-poor habitats that can be easily replaced. The only features of 
significant ecological value were the mature trees. It is understood that the two mature London plane 
specimens have been retained and protected. 
 
Ecological Value of Proposed Landscape Features 
The Proposed Landscaping Plan (201 Rev P.01) indicates that the following habitats will be created 
on site totalling c.260 m². 
 
Tree planting 
The planting of pear trees Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer' will provide a foraging resource in later 
summer / autumn for a variety of invertebrates, mammals and birds. It should be noted however that 
the trees will be newly planted and therefore they will take time to mature. 
 
Hedge planting 
A hedgerow is defined as any boundary line of trees or shrubs over 20 m long and less than 5 m 
wide, and where any gaps between the trees or shrub species are less than 20 m wide (Bickmore, 
2002). All hedgerows consisting predominantly (i.e. 80% or more cover) of at least one woody UK 
native species are listed as a Habitat of Principal Importance in England. Hedgerow H1 comprises 
native beech Fagus sylvatica and measures c. 50 m in length and as such will meet the above criteria 
once established. Once mature this hedge may also provide nesting habitat for birds.  
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Shrub and perennial planting 
Whilst shrub planting is not in itself a priority habitat on the Camden Local Biodiversity Action Plan 
(LBAP) it is important to recognise the wildlife value of formal landscaped areas. Although the species 
planted are mostly non-native a large proportion are wildlife attracting and nectar producing. 
Examples include Viburnum tinus, Hebe sp., and Skimmia japonica.   This habitat is subsequently 
valuable for pollinators such as bees and also provides foraging habitat for birds, bats and small 
mammals.  
 
Summary  
On review, it is considered that the landscaping proposals will result in a positive ecological 
enhancement of the site. Prior to development, the site was dominated by low ecologically valuable 
habitats except for mature trees. Post-development, the mature trees are to be retained and new 
ecologically valuable habitats created. This landscape proposal is in line with several points of Policy 
A3: Biodiversity (Local Plan) including being ‘proportionate to the scale of the proposed development’ 
and ‘incorporating additional trees and vegetation wherever possible’.  The creation of communal 
green spaces within this highly urbanised area (albeit limited in extent) will also help ‘to improve 
opportunities to experience nature’. In addition, the planting of native hedgerow and wildlife attracting 
trees and shrubs supports one of the aims of the Built Environment LBAP to ‘include biodiversity 
enhancing landscaping in all schemes’.  
 
Whilst the landscape proposal is considered to result in an overall gain in biodiversity, further 
enhancements to maximise opportunities for biodiversity should be considered. The inclusion of bat 
and bird boxes would help provide artificial nesting and roosting sites for a variety of urban bird and 
bat species such as house sparrow Passer domesticus and common pipistrelle Pipistrellus pipistrellus 
which are Species of Principal Importance and Priority Species on the LBAP.  
 
I trust that this assessment meets your requirements, however if you have any further queries please 
do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
For and On Behalf of Middlemarch Environmental Ltd. 
 
 
Sarah Boulstridge BSc (Hons) Grad CIEEM 
Senior Ecological Consultant 
 
 
Checked By       
 
 
Tom Docker MSc MCIEEM 
Ecological Impact Assessment Manager      
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Appendix 1 
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